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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Spangle Energy Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have aud ited the accompanying financial statements of Spangle Energy Private Limited ( .. the 
Company .. ) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3 1. 2023 and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss for the yea r ended. including the statement or Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the Ind AS 
financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our infom1ation and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 
2013 (''the AcC) in the manner so required and give a true and rair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs or the Company as at March 
31 ' 1 2023, its loss including other comprehensive income. its cash flows and the changes in equity for 
the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi ting 
(SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards arc 
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities fo r the Audit or the Ind AS Financial Statements' 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that arc 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. 
and we have fulfi lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence -.ve have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the lnd AS financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgmcnt, were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole. and in formi ng our 
opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 70 I is not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted 
company. 
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Information Other than the Pinancial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is respo11sible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in 1hc Annual report but does not indudc the Ind AS financial 

statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the [nd AS financial sIa1ements does not cover 1he other information and we do 1101 
express any forrn of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial staIemcnts. our responsibility is 10 read the other 

information and. in doing so. consider ,vhcther such other information is materially inconsistent wi1h 
the financial staLemems. or our knowledge ob1ained in 1he audit or otherwise appears 10 be materially 
miss1a1ed. If, based on the work we have per formed. we concludt: tha1 there is a material misstatement 
of this other information. we arc required to report that fact. \Ve have nothing 10 report in 1his regard. 

Emphasis of Matter 

\Ve draw a11ention 10 Note 32 of the financial statements. which describes the effect of following: 
(Rs In 'OOOs) 

As per the PPA. the company invoiced BESCOM at Rs. 8.4/- per unit but received Rs. 4.36/- citing a 
projecI delay. The company has appealed 10 KERC for release of balance 4.0--1 per unit for which KERC 
has ruled the appeal in BESCOM favour. T he company appealed to Karnaraka High Court. then 

withdrawn the case and ha. filed 1he appenl before Al'TEL New Delhi against the KERC Order. 

The company pursuam 10 the directions issued by the Hon 'blc Appel late T ribunal of Electricity 
("APTEL ") vide common order dated 24.11.2022 passed in Appeal No. 182 of 202 1 along with 
conncctecl mailers ( .. Common Order .. ) approached the KERC Bengaluru. 

The KERC Bengaluru allowl'd the petitio11, the follo wing order has passed ~11 the KERC 011 
21.0.1.2023 

a) The petitions are allowed. 
b) The delay is co11do11ed i11 commissioning of Solar Power Projects by the petitioners and 

co11seq11e11tly wrif( of Rs 8 . ./0 per 1111i1 is allo11•ed as agreed in PPA. 
c) The respondent J::SCOMs are directed not to levy liquated damages and~( already levied 

the same shall be refunded to the Petitioner within two months. 
d) The Petitioners are entitled for interest at the rate of 10% p.a. for differential wrijf for 

the period from the date of COD till date of payment. 
e) The Respondent ESCOMs are directed to make payment wirh ill(cresr wi1hi11 90 clays from 

the date of this order/a/ling which the Petitioner is cntirled.for late Payment Surcharge 
.from the dare of default till reali::arion. 

After the final Judgement is passed by KERC. Bangaluru. the balance amounl of R . 63.827 from FY 
2017- 18 to FY 2022-23 w i ll be recoverable by the company a per the order. A lso. the liquidated 
damages paid earlier of Rs.2,000 is also recoverable. The interest enti tled on the differential tariff and 
liquidated damages recoverable will be accounted on receipt basis. 



(Rs In 'OOOs) 
F.Y N umbe r o f Units Rate pc r unit Balance A mount 
2022-23 31.66.3 18 4.04 12.792 
2021-22 30.79.901 4.04 12.443 
2020-2 1 30.04.344 4.04 12.138 
2019-20 30.29.262 4.04 12.238 
20 18-19 28.57.681 4.04 11 .545 
20 17- 18 6.61.375 4.04 2.671 

Total 63,827 

• The total amount of Rs. 19,433 (Rs.1.23 X 1.57,98,881) to be paid to the Farmer as per MOU 
from July 2017 till March 2023. has been recognized in the financial Statements in the current 
financial year. since the company is now certain to realize the amount from BESCOM owing to 
the KERC Order. This amount will be paid once the amount is realized from BESCOM. 

• Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial S tatements 

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ( .. the Act'') with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash 0ows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the 
accounting standards prescribed under Section I 33 of the Act read with relevant ru les issued 
thereunder. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounti ng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other in-egularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
j udgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair vievv and arc free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud 
or e1Tor. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Cornpany's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

A uditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can ari se from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of · ken on the 

<oe,0 & C' 
~ 0 

* * () FRN:01&4165 C/l 
-:,- Chennal • 14 c: 
~ ~ 
~ -:::><:-
red AcC0 



basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

ldcnti fy and assess the ri sks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements . 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the aud it in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section I 43(3)(i) of the Act. we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However. future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Ind AS financial statements . 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fa ir presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that. individually or in 
aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be innuenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to cvaluntc 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged wi th governance regarding, among other matters. the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable. related 
safeguards. 



Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 ("'the Order''), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section ( 11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act. 20 13. we 
enclose in the Annexurc - B. a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said 
Order. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity deal t 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1. 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqual i lied as on March 31. 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(0 Wi th respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company with reference lo these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in '·Annexure A .. to this report; Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

(g) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, managerial remuneration has not been paid /provided. 
Accordingly, reporting under section 197( 16) of the Act is not applicable; and 

Q1) With respect to the other matters lo be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014. in our opinion and to the best or 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

L The Company does not have any pending litigations which could impact its financial 
posi tion. 

IL The Company did nol have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

UL There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

IV. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, 



1. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind or funds) by the company to or in any other 
person or entity, including foreign entities 'Intermediaries'. with the understanding. 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall , whether. directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any 
guarantee, security or the li ke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and 

11. No funds have been received by the company from any person or entity, including 
foreign entities 'Funding Parties', with the understanding. whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the company shall. whether. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identi fied in any manner whatsoever by or on bchal r or the 
Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee. security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

111. Based on audit procedures carried out by us. that we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumst::mccs, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the yea r and accordingly 
reporting on the compliance with section 123 or the Companies Act. 2013 is not appl icable 
for the year under consideration. 

vL As proviso to Ruic 3( I ) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 20 14 (as amended). which 
provides for books of account to have the feature of aud it trail. edi t log and related matters 
in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with 
effect from financial year beginning April I . 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 20 14 (as amended), is currently not 
applicable. 

For ABCD & Co, 
Chartered Accountan 
rirm No: 0164 I SS 

umar Bachha,, r 
Membership No: 2 14520 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDIN: 23214520BGWSYY1745 



Anncxurc "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(t) under ·Report on other legal and regulatory requirements· section of our 
report lo the members of Spangle Energy Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Inte rnal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Com panics Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Spangle Energy Private Limited 
("the Company") as of March 3 1, 2023, in conjunction with our audit o r the Ind AS financial statements 
or the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for .Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting cri teria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including 
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding o r its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the ti mely preparation of reliable 
linancial information. as required under the Companies Act. 201 3. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143( I 0) of the Companies 
/\et. 20 13, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and. both issued by the Insti tute 
or Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabk assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting wi th reference to these Ind AS financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financ ial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial cont rols over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind /\S 
financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the aud itor's judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audi t opinion on the internal financial controls over linancial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements. 



Meaning of Internal Financia l Contro ls Over Financial Reporting ·with Reference to these Financial 
Statements 

A Company's internal financial contro l over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financia l 

statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabil ity of financia l 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financia l 
statements includes those po licies and procedures that 

( I ) pertain to the mai ntenance of records that, in reasonable detai I, accurately and fa irly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
d irectors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regardi ng prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acqu isition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a materia l effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent L imitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to 
these Ind AS Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 
these Ind AS financia l statements, including the possibility of collusion o r improper management override 

of controls, material misstatements d ue to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections 

of any evaluation of the internal fir;ancial controls over financia l reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
fi nancia l statements to fu ture periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects. adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting ·with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at 
March 31. 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Insti tute of Chartered Accountants of Ind ia. 

For ABCD & Co, 
C hartered c an 

~ 
ay umar Bachhawa 

Membership No: 2 14520 ---
Place: Chennai, 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDIN: 232 14520BGWSYY l 745 



Annexure "8 " to the Independent Auditor's Report 

(Referred to in paragraph I under ·Report on other legal and regulatory requirements· section of our 
report to the members of Spangle Energy Pri vate Limited of even date) 

I. r ixed assets: 

a) (A) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to LIS, the 
Company is maintaining proper records showing fu ll particulars. including quantitative 
details and situation of property. plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. 

b) The property. plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the 
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to LIS 

and as examined by us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

e) According to the in formation and explanations given lo us and the records examined by 
LIS, we report that, the Company does not hold any freehold land as at the balance sheet 
date. In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease. the lease 
agreements as per Power purchase agreement entered with farmer are in the name of the 
Company. 

d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year. 

e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us and as represented by the 
management. no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company 
for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions /\et. 
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 
(45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder. and therefore the question or our commenting 
on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements 
does not arise. 

2. Inventories: 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. and on the 
basis of our examination of the books of account. the Company does not have any inventory 
as on 3 1 st March, 2023. 

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capi tal limits in excess of five crorc 
rupees. in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of securi ty of current 
assets at any point or time during the year. 

3. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the books of account, the Company has not made any investments in/provided any 
guarantee or security/granted any loans. secured or unsecured. to companies, fi rms. Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties listed in the register mainta ined under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act. 2013 . Consequently, the provisions of clauses iii (a) to (g) or the order are not 
applicable to the Company. 



4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us. the company has not 
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any investments during 
the year as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accord ingly, clause 
(iv) of the order is not applicable. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 regarding to the deposits accepted 
from the public are not applicable. 

6. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub - section 
( 1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activi ties carried on by the company. However. the 
overal l turnover from all its products and services is less than 35 crores in the preceding financial 
year. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) is not applicable to the company. 

7. 1n respect of statutory dues: 

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the books of account. and records, the Company has generally been regu lar in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax. Good and Service 
tax (GST), Cess and any other statutory dues wi th the appropriate authorities. There were 
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above as at March 31. 2023 for a period of 
more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to me, there are no dues of income tax. 
sales tax. service tax, Good and Service tax (GST) outstanding on account of any dispute. 

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. there are no 
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961). 

9. 

10. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender during the year. The Inter Corporate Borrowings are 
repayable on demand and terms and conditions for payment of interest thereon have not 
been stipulated. According to the information and explanations given to LIS, such loans and 
interest thereon have not been demanded for repayment during the relevant financial year. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
is not declared as a wi ll fu l defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not obtained any new term loans during the year. 

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to LIS. funds raised 
on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes. 

e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries/ associates/ joint-ventures and accordingly. 
paragraphs 3 (ix) (e) and 3 (ix) (t) of the Order are not applicable. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to u 
has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public 



II. 

debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly. clause(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) ln our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fu lly, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly. 
paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us. 
no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been 
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, clause(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) No report under subsection (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under the rule I 3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.20 14 
with the central government, during the and up to the date of this repo1t. 

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us. 
no whistle-blower complaints, have been received by the Company during the year. 

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause(xi i) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

13. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, all transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the 
detai ls have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

14. 

a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
docs not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as 
per provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

b) The company did not have an internal aud it system for the period under audit. 

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management. the company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly. the provisions of section 192 and clause(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. · 

16. 

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause(xvi)(a) and (b) of 
the Order are not applicable. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC), and it does not have any other companies in the 
Group as a CIC. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) and (cl) of the Order are not applicable. 

17. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs.2,916 (Jn '000s) in the financial year and but did not 
incur cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year. 

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly. clause(xviii) of 
the Order is not applicable. 



19. [n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of fi nancial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements. our kno'vvledge of the board or 
directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet elate. We, however. state that 
this is not an assurance as to the future viabili ty of the company. We further state that our reporting 
is based on facts up to the date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabi lities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, \:viii get 
discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

20. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, section 135 of 
Companies act is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under clause3(xx)(a) and (b) 
of the order is not applicable for the year. 

2 1. The repo11ing under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone 
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this 
report. 

For ABCD & Co, 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 016415S 

· nay Kumar Bachhawat - Partner 
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDIN: 23214520BGWSYYI 745 



SPANG LE ENERGY PRIVATE LIM ITED 
C IN: U40 104KA2015PT C08 1477 
Balance Sheet as at 3 1 March 2023 

ASSETS 
0 -CURRENT ASSETS 

Properly. Plant and Equipment 
Ca pital Work In Progress 

Financia l /\ssets 
Other r-inanc ia l assets 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
Total Non-Curre nt As.,;ets 

CU RR ENT ASSETS 

Inventories 

Financial /\ ssets 
T rade Receivable s 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Othe r financia l assets 

O the r C urrent Asse ts 
Total C urrent ll.uels 
Total Asse ts 

EQUITY AN D L IAB ILITIES 
EQUITY 

Equity Share Capita l 
O the r Equity 
Total Equ it)' 

LI A l3 1 LITIES 
No 11-C 11 rr·ent Liabilitie s 

Financia l Liabilities 
Borrowings 

Total No11-C 11rre 11I Liabilities 

C urre nt Liabilitie s 
r-inancial Liabilities 

Borrowings 
T rade Payables Due to 

Mic ro and Small Enterprises 
Othe r than Micro and Sma ll Ente rprises 

Othe r Financial Liabilities 
Othe r Curre nt Liabilities 
Total C urre nt Liabilities 

Total Liahilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements : 1-38 
As per our report of even date 

Noles 

4 

5 

6 

27 

7 

8 
9 

10 
11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

As a l 

3 I -Mar-23 

83.178 
11 5 

4,387 

7.199 
94,880 

65.298 
1.245 

10.020 
2 13 

76,776 
1,71 ,655 

100 

68.07 1 
68 , 17 1 

76.329 
76,329 

6.768 

194 

489 
19.586 

120 
27,156 

1,03,484 
1,7 1,655 

(Rs. In ·()()(}) 

As at 
3 1-M ar-22 

93.877 

4.187 

5.466 
J ,03.53() 

165 

52.359 

1.307 
10.020 

237 
64,089 

1,67,6 19 

100 
85.1 64 

85,264 

74.60-1 
74,604 

6.768 

25 1 

6 18 

105 
8 

7,75() 

82.355 
1,67,6 19 

For /\OCD & Co., For Spangle Energy Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn o: 0164 -s 

Cfif 

Vin iar Bachhawat 
Membership No: 2 14520 
Place: Chcnnai, 
Date: 22.05.2023 

Director 
DIN: 07544759 
Place: Bengaluru 

Dinesh Kumar Agarwal 
Director 
DIN: 07544757 
Place: Bengaluru 



SPANGLE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40104KA201SPTC081477 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3 1 March 2023 

(Rs. /11 ·oooj 

Fo r the Ycarendecl For the Year e nded 
Notes 31-Mar-23 3I -Mar-22 

INCOME 

Revenue From Opera tions 
O the r Income 
Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 

Changes in inventories of finished goods and Stock-in -Trade 
Employee Bene fit Expenses 

Finance Costs 

Depreciation / Amortisation Expenses 
O ther Expenses 
Total expenses 

Pro fit / (Loss) Before tax 
TAX EXPENSES 

C urrent Tax 
Deferred Tax 

Pro fit for the Period 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Ite ms that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

Re measurements of de fined benefit obligations, net 
Total Compre he ns ive Income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (of face va lue of Rs. I O each) 
Bas ic ( in Rs.) 
Diluted ( in Rs.) 

Weighted average equity sha res used in computing earnings 
per equity share 
Basic 

D iluted 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements : 1-3 8 
As per our report of even date 

19 
20 

2 1 

22 

23 
24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

26,763 

854 
27,6 17 

165 

66 

8,50 1 
10,693 
25,2 11 

44,636 

( 17,020) 

( 1,733) 
( 15,287) 

( 15,287) 

(1 ,528.65) 
( 1,528.65) 

10,000 
2.84.749 

25.87 1 
234 

26,105 

165 

( 165) 

579 
9,345 

11.862 
3.554 

25,340 

765 

95 
67 1 

67 1 

67.0G 
13.86 

10,000 
2.47.880 

fo r ABCD & Co., For Spang le Energy Private Lim ited 
C hartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0164 15S 

Vi umar Bachhawat 
Membersh ip No: 2 14520 
Place: C hennai. 
Date: 22.05.2023 

Director 
DIN: 07544759 
Place: Bengaluru 

Dinesh Kunrnr Agarwa l 
Director 
DIN: 07544757 
Place: Bengaluru 



SPANGLE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40 104KA2015PTC081477 
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31 2023 

Pa11iculars 

A. Cash flow from o pernting activ ities 
Net Pro fit/ ( Loss) before tax 
Adj ustmenls for: 
Depreciation 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Loss o n disposal of PPE 
Operating loss before working capital changes 
Adjustme nts for (increase) / decrease in operating assets : 
Adjustme nts for inc rease / (decrease) in operating liabilities : 
Inventories 
T rade Receivables 
Other C urrent Assets 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Other Current Liabilities 
Cash used in operations 

Net cas h now from / ( used) in opernting activities 

B. Cash now from inves ting activities 

Purc hase of tangible and intangible assets 
(I nvestment) / realisatio n of Fixed Deposits 
Interest received 

Net cash now from/ (us ed) inves ting activities 

C. Cash now from financing ac tiv ities 

Proceeds from/ (Repayment of) Current & Non C urre nt Borrowings 
Interes t Paid 
Increase in Debentures 
Redemptio n Of Debentures 
Ne t cas h flow from / (used) in financing activities 

Ne t increase/ (decrease) in cas h and cas h equivale nts ( A+ B+C) 
Cas h and cas h equivalents at the be g inning of the year 

Cas h and cas h eq uivale nts at the e nd of the period 

Cas h and cas h equivale nts as pe r cas h flow s tatement 

Cash on hand 

Balance w ith banks in curre nt account 

Cas h and cas h equivalents as pe r Balance s hee t 
Notes 

For the year e nded 
31 March2023 

( 17,020) 

10,693 
(223) 

8.501 
6 

1,957 

165 
(12,939) 

25 
( 187) 

19,448 
111 

8,580 

8,580 

( 115) 
( 188) 
2 11 
(92) 

(1,140) 
(5.058) 

(2,352) 
(8,550) 

(62) 
1,307 

1,245 

1,245 

1.245 

1,245 

(Rs. /11 '000) 
Fo,· the year e nded 

3 1 March 2022 

765 

11.862 
(2 1 I) 

9.345 

2 1,762 

( I 65) 
( 12.390) 

(8 1) 
( 124) 
(2 1) 
(26) 

8,954 

8,954 

(4.969) 
400 

?67 
(4,302) 

( 18.327) 
(6.660) 
22.203 

(7?8) 
(3,512) 

I , 141 
166 

1,307 

1,307 

1.307 

1,307 

I. The cash now statement is prepared under Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows notified 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 20 I 3. 

2. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet. 
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements : 1-38 
As per our repo11 of even date 
For ABCD & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0164I5S 

For Spangle Energy Private Limited 

achha\, 
Membersh ip No: 2 14520 
Place: Chennai. 
Date: 22.05.2023 

Sunn~ar Ja;n 
Director 
DIN: 07544759 
Place: Bengaluru 

Dinesh Kumar Agarwa l 
Director 
DIN: 07544757 
Place: Bengaluru 



SPANGLE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40I04KA2015PTC081477 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(R.s. !11 '000) 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars No ofSharcs Amount 
Equity s hares INR 10 each issued. subscribed a nd fully pa id 
As at 31st March 2022 I 0,000 100 
Issue of e quity s ha res - -
As at 31st March 2023 I 0,000 100 

B. OTHER EQUITY 

Retained 
Equity Component of Total equity 

Particulars 
Earnings 

Compound Financial attributable to 
Instnm1ent equity ho Ide rs 

As at 31 March 2022 (31, I 59) 1, 16,323 85,164 
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year ( 15.287) - ( 15.287) 
Less: Debentures redeemed - 1.807 1,807 
As at 31 March 2023 (46,445) 1,14,516 68,071 

See accompany ing notes to the Financial Statements : 1-38 
As per our report of even date 

For ABC D & Co., For Spangle Energy Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0164 15S 

V i, nar Bachha 
Membership No: 2 14520 
Place: C hennai, 
Date : 22 .05.2023 

Sun~ mar Jain 
Director 
DIN: 07544759 
Place: Bengaluru 

Dinesh Kumar Agarwal 
Director 
DIN : 07544757 
Place: Bengaluru 



SPA NGLE ENERG Y PRJVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40104KA20l5PTC081477 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

I. Corporate Information 
SPANGLE ENERGY PRIVATE LI MITED is incorporated in Ju ly 20 15 having its registered office in Karnataka, 
registered under the Companies Act 2013. It is formed to act as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPY) fo r the limited 
purpose to develop, execute, manage and run solar power generation project. 

2. Basis of Preparation 

a. Compliance with lnd AS 
The financial statements comply in a ll material aspects with Ind ian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
Section 133 or the Compan ies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (I ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 15 (as 
amended)] and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
Accounting pol icies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a rev ision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 
Detai ls of the Company's significant accounting pol icies are included in Note 3. 

b. Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
- certa in financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair va lue; 
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and 
- share-based payments measured at fai r value. 

c. New and ame nded standards adopted 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certa in accounting standards, and are effective I April 2022. 
These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and arc not expected to 
significantly affect the current or future periods. 

d. Operating Cycle 
Based on the nature of products/activities of'the Company and the nonnal time between acquisition of assets and their 
realization in cash or cash equ ivalents, the Company has determ ined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose 
of classification of its assets and liabi I ities as current and non-current. 

e . Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements or the entity are measured using the currency of the prin1ary economic 
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian 
rupee. which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

f. Use o f estimates 
In preparing these fi nancial statements, Management has made j udgrnents, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting pol icies and the reported amounts or assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actua l results 
could differ from those estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going bas is. Revisions to accounting estimates arc 
recognized prospectively. 
Judgements are made in applying accounting pol icies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized 
in the financial statements and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk ofresulting in a material adjustment are reviewed 
on an on-going bas is and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

g. Measurement of fair values 
Fair value is the price that wou ld be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an or 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is direct 
estimated using another valuation techniq ue. In estimating the fai r value of an asset or a liability, th 
into account the characterist ics of the asset or liabil ity if' market participants would take those cj} 
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. ra ir value for measureme1 ,C£oa-16l~~ ~ ire 
pu rposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis and measurements that hav 'Si f:\\~:6itJiit:;i; ~ s to 
fai r value but are not fair value, such as net real isable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind A (};hennal - 14 !: 

~ ~ 
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fa ir value measurements are categorised into Level I. 2 or 3 based on 
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the 
fai r value measurement in its entirety, which are described as fol lows: 
- Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can 
access at the measurement date. 
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I, that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e.as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); 
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabi lity. 

3. Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Revenue Recognition 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are rendered to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adj usted for discounts and other 
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts 
collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, 
the Company estimates the amount of consideration to \.vhich it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the 
goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained unti l it is 
highly probable that a sign ificant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur 
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. 

b. Property, plant and equipment 
i. Tangible 
Tangible property, plant and equipment (PPE) acquired by the Company are reported at acqu1s1t1on cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if any. The acquisition cost includes any cost 
attributable for bringing an asset to its working condition net of tax/duty credits availed, which comprises of purchase 
consideration and other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working cond ition for their intended 
use. PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

ii. Capital work-in-progress 
PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disc losed as "capital work-in-progress .. and 
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest. 

iii. Intangible 
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset 
will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably . Intangible assets are stated at original 
cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Administrative 
and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to the acquisition of intangible assets are 
a llocated and capitalised as a part of the cost o f the intangible assets. Expenses on software support and maintenance 
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which such costs are incurred. 

iv. Intangible assets under development 
Intangible assets not ready fo r the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible assets under 
development". 

v. Depreciation and Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for tangible property, plant and equipment is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for 
cost. less its estimated residual value. Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on 
the written clown method as per the useful li fe prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciat ion 
method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
b :nem;:-ei::i~ odied in the asset. 

1a, useful life and residual values are also rev iewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change 
Jj-i the es ·fu" es of useful li fe/residual value is accounted on prospective basis. Depreciation for additions 
" /deductio fi n owned assets is calculated pro rata to the remaining period of use. Depreciation 
~ ls is ~ - d in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the as , ver its 

"'1 ~91~g> ful life. All capital assets with individual value less than Rs. 5,000 are depreci, tt Fh¼!~sit?s . ear in 
y are purchased. 9. Chennal • 14 c 
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Estimated useful li fe considered by the Company are: 

Asset Estimated Useful Life 

Furniture Fittings I O Years 
Plant and Mach ineries 25 Years 

vi. Impairment of assets 
Upon an observed trigger or at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 
PPE, investment property and intangible asset to determine whether there is any indication that the asset have suffered 
an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested for 
impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. 

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. 

vii. De-recognition of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 
An item of PPE and intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any ga in or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE 
is determ ined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash nows. cash and cash equ ivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at ca ll with financ ial institutions. other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigni ficant 
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 

d. Foreign Currency Transaction 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are 
general ly recognized in statement profit and loss. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely 
to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of entity's net investment in that fore ign operation. Non­
monetary assets and non-monetary liabi lities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fa ir value are 
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fa ir value was determined. Non-monetary assets and 
non-monetary liabilities denominated in a fore ign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the 
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. 
Foreign exchange differences arising on translation of fore ign currency borrowings are presented in the statement of 
profit and loss, within finance costs. All other fore ign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of 
profit and loss on a net basis within other income or other expense. 

c. Income Taxes 
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period 's taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences and unused tax losses. 
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of 
the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in 
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes prov isions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The Company measures its tax balances for uncertain tax positions 
either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction 
of the resolution of the uncertainty . 
Deferred income tax is provided in fu ll, using the liabi lity method, on temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabi lities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is not 
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liabi lity in a transaction other than a business 
c · 1 that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred 
q m ~ determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantia lly enacted by-the end of the. 

porting ~ d and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized o · 1:: rrecl 
~: come ta, -~ '· ility is settled. ~<o 00 
'f) rre ~ ssets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and for unused tax I ss r~~l}-/~

1
if

5 
·-& -

f~ future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and lo Q .Chennai -14 ~ 
~~ ~ ~ 



Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabil ities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities 
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneous ly within the same jurisdiction. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to item 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

r. Provisions, and Contingencies 
Prov isions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation ( legal or constructive) as result of a past event. 
it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a 
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present 
va lue of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). The discount rate used to determine 
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. A 
disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may 
probably not require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be asce11ained with 
reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
Provision for onerous contracts i.e., contacts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under 
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, arc recognized when it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result o f an 
obligating event based on rel iable est imate of such obligation. 

g. Earnings Per Share 
(i) Basic earnings pe r share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: - the profit attributable to owners of the Company - by 
the weighted average number of equ ity shares outstanding during the financia l year, adjusted for bonus 
elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. 

(ii) Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take 
into account: 
- the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity 
shares, and 
- the weighted average number of add itional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the 
conversion of a ll dilutive potential equity shares. 
- potential ly issuable equity shares, that could potential ly dilute basic earnings per share, are not included 
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share when they are anti-dilutive for the period presented. 

h. Cash Flow Statements 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect metl1od, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

i. Financial Instruments: 
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. All financial assets and liabi lities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except fo r trade 
receivables which are initia lly measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
ac uisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fai r value through profit or loss, arc 

· value on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financia l 
I liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.-

assifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
asured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive it 1 profit or 

- those measured at amortised cost. 



The classificat ion depends on entity's business model for managing the financia l assets and the contractual terms of 
the cash flow. 
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehens ive 
income. For investments in debt instruments. this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. 
For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable e lection at 
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fa ir value through other comprehensive income. 
The Cornpany reclassifies debt investments when and on ly when its business model for managing those assets 
changes. 
Recognition 
Regular way purchases and sales o f financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company" 
comm its to purchase or sale the financial asset. 

Subsequent Measurement 
Debt Instruments 
i) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost 
A financia l asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is he ld within a business model whose objective is 
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual tenns of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payrnents of principal and interest on the principa l amount outstanding. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any 
ga in or loss arising on dcreeognition is recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented as a 
separate line item in statement of profit and loss. 
ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Compre hensive Income 
A financia l asset is subsequently measured at fa ir value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is ach ieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and sell ing financia l assets and 
the contractual terms of the financ ial asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstand ing. The Company has made an irrevocable e lection for its 
investments which are c lassified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fa ir va lue in other 
comprehensive income based on its business model. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impaim1ent gains or losses, 
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit and loss. When the financial 
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equ ity to the 
statement of profit and loss and recognised under other income/ other expenses. Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fa ir value through profit or loss. A 
ga in or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fai r value through profit or loss and is not part o f a 
hedging re lationship is recogn ized in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss in the period 
in which it arises. Interest income from these financ ial assets is included in other income. 

iv) Equity Instruments 
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fa ir value. Where the Company has elected to present 
fa ir va lue gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fa ir value gains and losses to profit or loss fol lowing the derecognition of the investment. Dividends 
from such investments are recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company' s right to receive payments 
is established. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fa ir value through profit or loss are recognized in the 
statement o f profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured 
at r VOCI are not reported separate ly from other changes in fair value. 

v) Impai rment of Financial Assets 
The Company recognizes loss al lowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which 
are not fa ir valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant fi nancing component" 
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. r-or a ll other financial assets, ECLs are measured at an amou nt eq ual 
to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in cred it risk from initia l recognition in which case 
those are measured at li fetime ECL, as applicable, as the case ,nay be. The amount of EC Ls (or reversals, if any) that 
· · o adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be. recognized 1~ 

an impairment ga in or loss in the profit or loss. 

Liabilities 
lily and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liab 
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the defin itions of a financi 
ent. 



Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for 
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination, which is subsequently measured at fa ir value through 
profit or loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts 
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

vii) Dcrecognition of Financial Instruments 
Financial Asset 
A financial asset is derecognized only when 
- the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
- reta ins the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obl igation to 
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 
Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has 
not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. the financial asset is not 
derecognized. 
Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. 
Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of 
continuing involvement in the financia l asset. 
Financial Liability 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation speci fied in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

j. Leases 
The company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use o f an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company 
assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i i) the company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease and ( iii) the company has the right to direct 
the use of the asset. The company has applied the exemption of not to recognize Right to Use assets and liabi li ties for 
leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application as a practical expediency. For these 
short term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight 
line basis over the term of the lease. 

k. Inventories 
Inventories (raw material - components including assemblies and sub assemblies) are stated al the lower of cost and 
net realisable value. Cost of inventory includes cost of purchases and all other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of 
weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated costs of completion and the estirnated costs necessary to make the sale. 

I. Trade Receivables 
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of 
business and reflects company's unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of 
time). Trade receivables are recognised initia lly at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing 
components. The company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and 
therefore measures them subsequently at an1ortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance. 
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbil lcd 
revenue. 
A receivable is a right to consideration that is cond itional only upon passage of time. Revenue in excess of bi ll ings is 
recorded as unbilled revenue and is classified as a financial asset as only the passage of time is required before the 
payment is due. Invoicing in excess of earnings are classified as contract liabilities wh ich is disclosed as deferred 
revenue. 
Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet. 

m. Trade Payables 

nts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financia l year 
paid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade payables are presented as cu · 1il lcss 
t due within twelve months after the reporting period. They arc recognized init' _______ .... ,alue· 

ntly measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 



n. Borrowings 
Borrowings are initially recognized at fa ir value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount 
is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 
establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some 
or a ll of the fac ility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred unti l the draw down occurs. To the extent 
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the fac ility will be drawn down, the fee is capita lized as a 
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the faci lity to which it relates. 
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obl igation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred 
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed. is 
recognised in Statement of profit and loss under other expenses. 
Borrowings are classified as current liabi lities unless the Company has an uncond itional right to defer settlement of 
the liabil ity for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of material provision of a long 
term loan arrangement on or before the date of the reporting period with the effect that the liabi lity becomes payable 
on demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, afler the 
reporting period and before approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence 
of the breach. 

o. Exceptional items 
When an item of income or expense within Statement of profit and loss from ordinary activity is of such size, nature 
or incidence that its disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the Company for the year, the nature and 
amou nt of such items is disclosed as exceptional items. 

----- S pace is left intentionally blank-------



4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Tan~ible Assets 

Desc,;ption 

Cross Block 
B alance as at 31st March 2022 
Deletions 
Balance as at 31st March 2023 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 31st March 2022 

C harge for the yea r 

Disposals 

Balance as at 31st March 2023 

Net B lock 
Balance as at 31st March 2023 
B alance as at3lst March 2022 

5. Capital Work in Progress 

Capita l Work in Progeress - Supply 
Total 

Plant & 
Machinerv 

1 ,62,469 

-
1,62,469 

68,599 

10,692 
-

79,291 

83,178 
93,870 

Capital Work in Progress - Ageino Schedule .., . 

Furniture 

36 
(36) 
-

29 

I 

(30) 
-

-
7 

Total 

1,62,505 

(36) 
1,62,469 

68,628 
10,693 

(30) 
79,291 

83,178 
93,877 

As at 
3 1-Mar-23 

115 
115 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Par1iculars Less than 3 years 
one year 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
and above 

P ro jects in Progress 115 - - -
Total 115 - - -

6. Other Financial Asset - Non-Current 

Bank Depos its 4,387 
Total 4,387 

7. Inventories 

Stock-in-T rade 

Total 

8. Trade Receivables 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Trade Receivables 65.298 
65,298 

& 32) 

(Rs. Ill '000) 

As at 
31-Mar-22 

4,187 
4,187 

165 
165 

52,359 
52,359 



(Rs. In '000) 
Ageina ofTradc Receivables· 

"' 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars 

As at 3 1st March 2023 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 

Total 

As at 31st March 2022 

( i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 

(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good 

Total 

9. Cash and Cash Equivalent 

Cash o n ha nd 

Balance with Banks 

In Current Accounts 

In Fixed Deposits 

Less than 
6 Months 

8,33 I 
8,33 1 

1,324 
6,421 

7,745 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance S heet 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Cash Flow Statements 

10. Other Financial Assets 

Advances & Deposits 

Others 

Total 

11. Other Current Assets 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Ba lance with Govt Autho rities 
Othe rs 

Total 

12. Share Capital 

Authorised 

I 0,000 Equity Shares oft I 0 each 

Jssued, Subscribed and Paid up 

I 0,000 Equity Shares o f t I 0 each 

6 Months -
I Year 

5,931 
5 ,93 1 

-
6.022 

6,022 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

12.443 12,138 
12,443 12, 138 

- -
12,138 12.238 

I 2, 138 12,238 

As at 

3 l-Mar-23 

1,245 

J,245 

l ,245 

10,000 

20 
J 0,020 

35 
178 

213 

As at 

3 years 
Total 

and above 

26,455 65.298 
26,455 65,298 

- 1.324 
14,217 51.036 

14,2 17 52,359 

As at 

31 -Mar-22 

As at 

1,307 

1,307 

1,307 

10,000 

20 
l 0,020 

56 
181 

237 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

100 100 
100 100 

100 100 
100 100 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 a.Reco11ciliatio11 of the shares 011t.\·tamli11g at the 
hegi1111ing anti at the emf of the reporting p eriod Number Amount Number Amount 

1ce me nt of the yea r . 10.000 100 10,000 100 
ring the year 
1e year 10,000 100 10,000 100 



(Rs. /11 '000) 

b.Righls, preferences and restrictions al/ached lo equity shares 
T he company has a s ingle class of equity shares. Accordingly. all equity sha res rank equa lly wi1h regard lo dividends 

a nd s ha re in the company's residua l assets . The equity shares are e ntitled to receive d ividend as declared from lime 

10 time afte r s ubject to d iv idend to pre fe re nce share holders. T he voting rights of an equity s hare ho lder on a poll (1101 

show o f hands) a re in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capita l of the company. 

O n winding up of the compa ny. the ho lder of equity s ha res will be entitled to rece ive the residual assets of the 
compa ny, re maining afte r distribution of all pre fe re ntial amounts in proportion lo the numbe r or equity s ha res held. 

c. Particulars ofslwreltoltlers Ito/ding more titan 3 1 March 2023 3 1 March 2022 

5 % slta re.\· of a c/a .\·s of s /111 re.\· Numher ( '¼, oftotal Number ( '¼, oftotal 
s hares) s hares) 

Equity shares of~ I O each fully paid held by 

Refex Green Power Limited* 7,400 74% 7,400 74% 

Shashidha r 2.600 26% 2.600 26% 
10,000 100% 10,000 100'1/c, 

tl. Particulars ofslwreholdi11g of Promoters 31 March 2023 3 1 March 2022 
Numbe r (% o f (% of change in Numbe r (% of (% o f change in 

to tal s hares during to tal s hares during 
s hares) the year) s hares) the year) 

Equity shares of~ 10 each fully paid held by 
Refex Green Power Limited* 7.400 7-to/o 0% 7,400 74% 0% 

Shashidhar 2,600 26% 0% 2.600 26% 0% 
I 0,000 100% 0% I 0,000 100% 0% 

*With effect from 051h May 2022 the name of the Company was changed from ·SIL Rooftop Solar Power Private 
Limited' to "Ref ex G reen Power Private Limited". With effect from I 0111 May 2023 the name of the Company was 
changed from 'Refcx Green Power Private Limited' to "Rc fcx Green Power Limited". 

13. Other Equity 

Retained Earnings 

Equity component of OC R PS/ OCD 
T o tal 

A.RETAINED EARN INGS 

Opening Balance 

Add : Surplus/ Loss during the year 
Clos ing Balance 

B .EQUITY COM PONENT OF COMPOUN D 
FINANCIAL INSTRUM ENT 
Opening ba la nce 

Add: Debentures issued during the year 

Less: Debentures redeemed during the year 
Les · ·, · · component of OCR PS 

:i, R ·e 

I 

~ 

As at 

31-Mar-23 

(46,445) 

1, 14,516 
68,071 

(3 I ,159) 
( 15,287) 

(46,445) 

1,16,323 

1,807 

1, 14,516 

68,071 

As at 

31-Mar-22 

(3 1.1 59) 
1.1 6.323 
85, 164 

(3 1.830) 
671 

(31,159) 

99.824 
22203 

559 
5,145 

1, 16,323 

85, 164 



(Rs. 111 '000) 
The compound financ ial instrument re late to the Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares ('OC R PS') and 
Optionally convertible debentures ('OC D') issued by the company. 

I. Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ('OCRPS'): 

Authoris e d s hare capital 

3,00,000 Pre fe re nce shares of { I O each 

Iss ued, Subscribed and Paid up s hare capital 

2,34.404 Optiona lly Convertible Prefe rence Shares 

o f { 10 each 

a.Reco11cili"tio11 of the shares 011tsta11ding at the 
beg i 11 n in g and at the em/ of the reporting period 

Op tionally convertible Preference Shares 
At the comme ncement o f the year 

Shares issued during the year 

Shares redeemed during the year 
At the e nd of the year 

As at As at 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

3,000 3,000 
3 ,000 3 ,000 

2,344 2,344 

2 ,344 2,344 

3 J M arch 2023 3 1 March 2022 ----------------------
Numbe r A mount Number Amount 

2,34,404 2.344 2,34,404 2344.04 

2,34,404 2,344 2,34,404 2 ,344 

b. Rigltts, p references and restrictions atlached to preference shares 

0.01 % Optionally conve rtible non-cumulative pre ference sha res were issued in the month of March' 19 ( 148063 

Shares @ Rs . I 0; Premium of Rs .497), December' 19 (76589 Shares @ Rs . I 0; Pre mium of Rs .497) & August' 

20(9752 Sha res @ Rs. 10; Premium of Rs.53 1) purs uant to the share holders agreeme nt. Optionally convertible 

110 11 - cumula tive pre fe rence sha res a re convertible into equity sha re of pa r value Rs. I 0/- in the ratio of I : I . 
These pre ference s hares a re convertible at any time 011 or before the end of nine teenth year from the date of 

iss uance a t the option of the company. Pre fere nce sha res s ha ll be ma ndatorily converted to equity shares upon 

comple tion of a period of 19 years and 11 months from the da te o f issuance and a llotment o f such pre fe rence 

shares. The holders of these shares are e ntitled to a non-cumula tive d ivide nd 0.0 I% . Preference s ha res carry a 

pre fe rentia l right as to dividend over equity shareholde rs. T he pre fe rence sha res are entitled to one vote per 

s ha re a t meetings of the Company on any resolutions of the Company directly involving the ir rights . 

c.Partic11/ars ofslwreholders holding more than 
5 % slwres rif a class ofslwres 

Re fe x G reen Power Limited * 

*(Re.fer Note 29) 

2. Optionally Convertible Debentures {'OCD'): 

Iss ue d, Subscribed and Paid up 

O ptiona lly C onvertible De bentures of ~ 10 ea ch 

31 March 2023 3 1 March 2022 
Number '% Numbe r '¼, 

2,34,404 I 00% 2.34,404 100% 
2,34,404 100% 2,34,404 100% 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Number Amount Number A m o unt 

40.345 403 45,307 453 
40,345 403 45,307 453 



(R.s. 111 ·oooJ 
a.Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 ----------------------
he g inning llntl at the end of the reporting period Number A mount Number Amount 

Optionally convertible Debentures 
At the commencement of the year 

Shares issued during the year 

S hares redeemed during the year 
At the e nd of the year 

45.307 

4,962 
40,345 

b.Rigltts, preferences {llllf restrictions allacltetl to Debentures 

453 

50 
403 

46,842 

1,535 
45,307 

468 

15 
453 

0.01 % Optiona lly convertible debentures were issued in the month of March '22 (46842 debentures@ Rs . 

I O; Premium of Rs.464) pursuant to the debenture holder's agreement. Optionally convertible debentures 

are conve1tible into equity share of par value Rs. I 0/- in the ratio of I: I. In the month of Marc h '22, 1535 

debentures were redeemed by the holder at issue price. 
In the mo nth of June 2022, 4192 and in the month September 2022. 770 debentures V-iere redeemed 

respectively at issue price . 

These debentures arc convertible at a ny time on or before the end of nine teenth year from the date of 

issuance at the option of the ho lder. The holders of these debentures are e ntitled to a n interest of0.01% on 

par value of debentures. T he debenture holde rs a re entitled to o ne vote per debenture a t meetings of the 

Company on any resolutions of the Company direc tly involving their rig hts. 

c. Particulllrs of tlebe11turel10/ders Ito/ding more 
than 5 % shares of" c/(lss of debentures 
Refex Green Power Limited* 

*(Refer Nute 29) 

14. Borrowings- Long Term 

SECURED 

Borrowings from Banks & FI 

Less: Current Maturities of Long term Borrwings 

Total 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Number 

40,345 

40,345 

'% Number 

100% 45.307 100% 
100% 45,307 100% 

As at 
31-Mar-23 

As at 
3 1-M ar-22 

46,695 

(6,768) 
39,927 

50,246 

(6,768) 

43,478 

Bank Borrowings includes the Term loan sanctioned of Rs 9.50 crores during the year 2017- 18. The loan is repayable 
by Jun 2030. Loan is secured by hypothecation of all Plant & Mach ineries procured for setting up the project & farmer' s 
land of 13 acres, personal guarantee of Sunny Chandrakumar Jain, Anil Jain, Shashidhara, Corporate guarantee of 
Sherisha Solar LLP, Refex Industries Limited & Sherisha Techno logies Private Limited. Collateral Security of 
Thiruporur Property measuring 4 acres and 19 cents he ld by Refex Industries Limited, assignment of Power Purchase 
Agreement and Pledge of 5 I% of Promoter Share. The loan carries an interest rate of I 0.8% as on 
3 I .03.2023(31.03 .2022: 9 .15%). 

UNSECURED 

Inter Corporate Deposits from Related Parties 
Liability component of Redeemable Preference Shares 

Total 

2,4 11 
33,990 

36,401 
31. 126 

3 1,126 

Inter Corpo rate Loans are taken for working capital requirements. The loan carries an interest rate of 8% per annum 

1~~.::?:::::'l(:·5% p.a) on the outstanding amount. 
~RIV,41: 
5. Bo ings- Current 

maturities on longterrn borrowings 6,768 6,768 
6,768 6,768 



16. Trade Payable Due to 

Micro and Small Ente rprise 

Other than Micro and Small Enterprise 
Total 

Ageina ofTrade Payables· t::, . 

As at 

3 l-Mar-23 

194 
489 
683 

(Rs. In '000) 
As at 

3 I-Mar-22 

25 1 
618 
869 

Outstanding for follo\\·ing pedods from due date of payment 
Particulars Less than 

one year 
As at 31st March 2023 
(i) MSME 
(ii) Others 
Total 
As at 31st March 2022 
( i) MSME 
( ii) Others 
Total 
(Refer Note 30) 

17. Other Financial Liabilities- Current 

Interest accrued and due but not pa id 
Payable to Fa rmers* 
Other Payables 
Total 

*(Refer Note 32) 

18. Other Current Liabilities 

Sta tutory Dues (GST, TDS, etc .,) 

Total 

19. Revenue from Operations 

Sale of Power 
Sale of Products 
Total 

20. Other Income 

Interest Income 
Other Income 
Total 

f Stock-in-Trade 

194 
489 
683 

251 
5 

256 

l-2years 

-
-
-

-
-
-

2-3 years 

-

-

-

-
-
-

3 years and 
above 

-
-
-

-
613 
613 

33 
19.433 

120 
19,586 

120 
120 

Total 

194 
489 
683 

251 

618 
869 

105 
105 

8 

8 

For the Year e nded For the Year e nde d 
3 l -M ar-23 31-M ar-22 

26,597 
165 

26,763 

223 
63 1 
854 

25,87 1 

25,87 I 

2 11 

234 

165 
J65 



22. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade 

Opening inventory 

Closing inventory 
C hange in inve ntory 

23. Employee Benefit Expenses 

Salaries and wages 
Total 

24. Finance Cost 

Interest cost 
Interest 0 11 Inter Corpo rate Deposits 

Co111111it111e11t Interest - Term loan 

l111erest 0 11 Term l oon 

Interest o n Fi11a11cia/ liohility - OCD 

Interest o n Financial Liability- OC PS 

loon Processi11g-A111orti:ed Cost 

Total 

25. Depreciation & Amortisation 

Depreciation 
Total 

26. Other Expenses 

Rates and Taxes 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 

Bank Charges 

Professional Fees 
Payment to A uditors 

Travelling Expenses 
Operations and Maintenance 

Rebate 

Payment to Farmers 

Insurance Expenses 

Misce llaneous Expenses 
Total 

Payme nt to Auditors 

Statutory A udit 

Certification and Other Charges 

27. Tax Expenses 

in P re fit & Loss 

(R~. In '000) 
Fo r the Year ended For the Year e nded 

3 1-M ar-23 3 1-M ar-22 

165 

165 

165 (165) 

66 579 
66 579 

8.50 1 9.345 
33 925 

fi I 

5,05 1 5.59./ 

353 29 

3,056 2 .735 

7 

8,501 9,345 

10,693 11 ,862 
I 0 ,693 11 ,862 

11 30 
6 
2 11 2 

2.032 147 
275 265 

62 67 
2,470 2.097 

544 462 
19,433 

349 3 13 
27 6 1 

25,211 3,554 

2 10 195 
65 70 

275 265 

( 1,733) 95 
( 1,733) 95 



A Defe rred Tax Liabilties/(Asset) - Net 
De fc rrcd Tax Liabilities 

Fixed assets: Impact o f difference between tax depreciation 

a nd deprec iation/amortisation for financial reporting 

Effect of cost of finance 

Gross Deferred Tax Liability 
Defe rred Tax Assets 
Financial assets at amortized cost 

Carried Forward Unabsorbed Depn Losses 

Gross Deferred Tax Assets 

Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asse t) 

B Reconciliation o f Defe rred Tax liability 
Opening Deferre d Tax Laibility 

Deferred Credit recorded in State ment o f Profit & Loss 

Closing Deferred Tax Liability/(Assct) - Net 

28. Earn ings Per Share (EPS) 

a. Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the per iod 

b.Effect o f dilutive common equiva lent shares - Optionally 

Convertible Debentures 
c . Effect of dilutive common equiva lent shares - O ptiona lly 

Convertible Redeemable Prefere nce Shares 

d. weighted average number of equity sha res a nd common 

equivalent shares outstanding 

Diluted Earnings 
Profit After Tax 

Add: Interest on Financia l Liability - OCRPS 

Add: Interest on Financia l Liability - OCD 

Total Dilutive Earnings 

Earnings per equity share (of face va lue o f Rs. 10 each) 

Basic ( in Rs.) 

Diluted* ( in Rs.) 

As at 3 1 
M arch 2023 

18,634 
22 

18,656 

25,856 
25,856 

(7,199) 

(5,466) 
( I ,733) 

(7, 199) 

3 1st March 2023 

10,000 

40,345 

2,34,404 

2,84,749 

( 15,287) 

3,056 

353 

(11,877) 

(1 ,529) 

( 1,529) 

As at 3 1 
Marc h 2022 

20.445 

20,445 

24 

25.887 
25,9 12 

(5,466) 

(5,56 1) 

95 
(5,466) 

31s t March 2022 

10,000 

3,476 

2,34.404 

2,47,880 

671 

2,735 

29 
3,435 

67 

14 

*As the company has incurred loss during the year ended March 3 1, 2023, di lutive effect on weighted average 
number of shares would have an anti-dilutive impact and hence, not considered in diluted EPS computation. 



(Rs. /11 '000) 
29. Re lated Party Transactions 

A. List of Related Parties1 

Name of the ,·e lated party and nature ofreh1tionship 

Nature of Relations hip Name ofthc Relate d Party 

Ultimate Holdine Compa ny R"fP.x R~n<'w~hle<; & lnfrn c;tr11c 111re I imirN? 
Holding Company Refex Green Power Limited3 
Fe llow Subs idiary Company Sourashakthi Ene ruv Private Limited 

Entities in whic h s hare ho lde rs/ She risha Tcchnolgies Pvt Ltd 

directors Mcgamic Electronics Private Limited 

Sunny Chandrakurnar Jain 

D irectors Patrik Yijay Kumar Franc is Arun Kumar 

Dinesh Kumar Agarwal 

1 as identified by the management and re lied upon by the aud itors. 
2 With effect from 25th October 2022. the name of the Company was changed from ' Sunedison lnfrastruc1urc 
Limited · to "Rcfcx Renewables & Infrastructure Lim ited ... 
3 With e ffect from 5th May 2022, the name of the Company was changed from 'S IL Rooftop Solar Power Private 
Limited' to " Refcx Green Power Private Limited" . Further with effect from 10th May 2023, the name of the 
Company was changed from 'Refex Green Power Private Limited' to "Refex Green Power Limited". 

B. Transactions with Related Parties 

N:lture ofthe Trans actio n Name ofRe lated Party 

Debentures Issued (Issue Price) Refex Green Power Limited 
Debentures Redeemed 
(Redemption Price) Refex Green Power Limited 

Sa le of 1xoducts Sourashakthi So~1r Private Limited 
Interest Exoense Refex Green Power Limited 
Payme nt for Farmer's Share Shashidhar 
Oocration & Maintenance Charges Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Limited 
Re1)a irs & Main1enance Mcgamic Electronics Private Limited 
Reimbursement of Exoenses Refox Green Power Limited 

Loan Rcoaid Refex Green Power Limited 
Loan 13orrowed Refex Green Power Limited 

C. Balance at year end 

Nature of the Transaction Name of Related Party 

Creditors Re fex Renewablcs & Infrastructure Limited 

Creditors Megamic Electronics Private Limited 
Pa ment for Farmer's Share Shashidhar 

Loan Pa able Re f ex Green Power Limited 
Interest Pa 1able Refex Green Power Limited 

Fo r the year e nded 
March 3 1, 2023 

-

2.352 
165 
33 

19.433 
1.815 

-
-

2,458 
4,869 

For the year ended 
March 31 , 2023 

148.72 

19,433 
2.4 11 

33 

For the year ended 
M arcl1 3 1, 2022 

22,203 

728 
-
925 

-
1.7'19 

35 
334 
738 

10.557 

For the year e nde d 
March 31, 2022 

142 
18 

30. Disclosures required unde r Section 22 of the Mic ro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

The management has identified certain enterprises whic h have provided goods and services to the Company. and which 
qualify under the defin ition of 'Micro and Small Enterprises' as defined under Micro, Small and Medium En.terprises 

Act, 2006 ("the Act"). According ly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts p' t...-,TT""HJr . nterpriscs 
eh 2023 and 3 1 st March 2022 have been made in the financ ia l statements base vailable 
pany and relied upon by the auditors. 



Pm1iculars 

(i) Principal a mount remaining unpaid to any s upplie r as at 

the e nd o f' the accounting year 

(ii) Interest due the reon remaining unpaid to any supplier as 

a t the e nd of the accounting year 

( iii) The amount of interest pa id a long w ith the amounts of 

the payment made to the supplier beyond the a ppointed day 

( iv) T he amount of interest due and payable for the year 

(v) T he amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid a t 

the end of the accounting yea r 

(vi) The amount of furthe r interest due a nd payable even in 

the succeeding year. until s uch date w hen the interes t dues 

as above a re actually paid 

3 I. Fair Value Measurements 
A. Financial Instrument by Category 

As at 
3 1 March 2023 

194 

(Rs. 111 '000) 
As at 

31 March 2022 

25 1 

Particulars As at 3 1 March 2023 Fair value hie rnrchy 

Financial Asse ts 

Trade Rece ivables 

Cnsh and cash equiva le nts 

O ther Financial Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade Payable 

Other Financial Liabilities 
TOTAL LIA BlLIT IES 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 

Trade Rece ivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other Financ ial Assets 
TOT AL ASSETS 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade Payable 

Othe r Financ ial Liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Fair value hierarchy 

FVPL FVOCJ A mortised cost Leve l I Level II Level Ill 

65,298 

1.245 

14.407 
80,950 

83.097 

683 

19,586 
1,03,365 

As at 31 March 2022 Fair value hie rarc hy 
FVPL FVOCI A mortised cost Level I Level II Level Ill 

52.359 

1307 
14,207 

67,873 

81.372 
869 
105 

82,346 

Le ·,,,::;.=-~ rices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Le her than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for t y. either 
d. es) or indirectly ( i.e., Derived from prices). 

the assets or liabilities that are not based 0 11 observable market data (uno 
are classified as level 3 of fair value hierarchy. 



B. Financial risk management 

The Company business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk. foreign currenc) 
risks and credit risk. The Company's management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing 
the Company risk management framework . The management is responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Company risk management policies. The Company risk management polic ies are establ ished to identify and 
analyse the risks faced by the Company. to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls. periodically revie" 
the changes in market conditions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigating 
actions are also placed before the Board of directors of the Company. 

i. C redit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financia l loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from Company's trade receivables and other financial 
assets. 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum cred it exposure which is as fo llows: 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 
O ther financial assets 

Trade receivables 

(Rs. ill '000) 

C arrying amount 
As at As at 

31 March 2023 3 1 M:1rch 2022 

65.298 52.359 
1.245 

14,407 

80,950 

1.307 
14,207 

67,873 

Trade receivables arc typica lly unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. The Company 
have an outstanding trade receivable amounting to Rs. 65,298 from BESCOM as at 31 '1 Marci, 2023. As per 
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with BESCOM, Power Price is agreed at Rs.8.4/- per unit & invoice raised 
accordingly. BESCOM paid only Rs.4 .36/- per unit against Rs.8.40/- per unit stating delay in the commissioning 
of the project by the Company. The Company has appealed to KERC for release of the balance Rs.4.04/- per 
unit, for which KREDL has ruled the Appeal in BESCOM·s favour. The Company has appealed to the Karnataka 
High Court. As per Supreme Court decision, the Company has withdrawn the case before High Court of 
Karnataka and has filed the appeal before the APTEL New Delhi against the KERC Order. The company 
pursuant to the directions issued by the I lon' ble Appellate Tribunal of Electricity ("APTEL") vide common 
order dated 24.1 1.2022 passed in Appeal No.182 of 2021 along with connected matters ("Common Order .. ) 
approached the KERC Bengaluru. The KERC Bengaluru allowed the petition, order has passed by the KERC 
on 2 1/03/2023. The delay is condoned in commission ing of Solar Power Projects by the petitioners and 
consequently tariff of Rs 8.40 per unit is al lowed as agreed in PPJ\. 

C!1sh and cash equivalents 
The Company held cash and cash equiva lents with cred it wo11hy banks as at the reporting dates which has been 
measured on the 12-month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institut ions arc 
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk. 

ii. Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligation, associated with 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company manages liquidity 
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking fac il ities and reserve borrowing fac ilities, by continuously 
monitoring forecast and actual cash nows and matching the maturity profi les of financia l assets and liabilities. 
The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources o f funding. I laving regards to the nature of the business 
wherein the 

~ ::;::::~' any is able to generate fixed cash flows over a period of time and to optimize the cost of funding, the 
-.i. AAHJJ ~, from time to time, funds its long -term investment from short-term sources. The short-term borrowings 
~ can ~9: I forward or. if required, can be refinanced from long term borrowings. In additi 0;11-sc ses and 
~ polici~{r latcd to such risks are overseen by senior management. ~<o----... o 
uJ - * * v) ii( (") FRN:01641 5S (I) 

)c)t\t ¥ v '::f Chennal - 14 c 
~s ~ ~ 

'$ ~ 



The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at 
3 1 March 2023 and 3 I March 2022. 

P:utic ulars 

Borrowings 
Trade Payables 
Other Fina nc ial Liabilities 
Total 

Particul:1rs 

Borrowings 
Trade Payables 
O ther Financial Liabilities 
T otal 

32. Note on Payment for Farmer's Slrnrc 

Less than 
one year 

6.768 
683 

19.586 
27,036 

Less than 
one year 

6,768 
869 
105 

7,742 

(Rs. ill '000) 
As at 3 1 M ~u-c h 2023 

1-2 years 

6.768 

6,768 

2 years and 
above 

69,56 1 

69,561 

As at 31 March 2022 

1-2 years 

6,768 

6,768 

2 years and 
above 

67,836 

67,836 

Total 

83.097 
683 

19.586 
1,03,365 

Total 

81 .372 
869 
105 

82 ,346 

a. /\s per Power Purchase /\grcement (PPA) with BESCOM. Power Price is agreed at Rs.8.4/- per unit & invoice 
raised accordingly. BESCOM paid only Rs.4.36/- per unit against Rs.8.40/- per unit stating delay in the 
commissioning of the project by the Company. The Company has appealed to KERC for release of the balance 
Rs.4.04/- per unit, for which KERC has ruled the Appeal in 8 ESCOM's favour. The Company has appealed to 
the Kamataka High Court. As per the directions of the l1011·b1e Supreme Court. the company has withdrawn it's 
application made before the hon' blc High Court of Karnataka and has fi led an appeal before the APTEL New 
Delhi against the KERC Order. 

The company pursuant to the di rections issued by the I Ion ' ble Appellate Tribunal of Electricity ('·APT EL'.) vidc 
common order dated 24. 11.2022 passed in Appeal No.182 of 202 1 along with connected matters ("Common 
Order") approached the KERC Ocngaluru. 

The KERC 13engaluru allowed the pet it ion, the following order has passed by the KERC on 2 1.03.2023 
a) The petitions are allowed. 
b) The delay is condoned in commission ing of Solar Power Projects by the petitioners and 

consequently tariff of Rs 8.40 per unit is a llowed as agreed in PP/\. 
c) The respondent ESCOMs are directed not to levy liquatcd damages and if already levied the 

same shall be refunded to the Petitioner within two months. 
cl) The Petitioners are entitled for interest at the rate or I 0% p.a. for differentia l tariff for the 

period from the date of COD t i II date of payment. 
e) The Respondent ESCOMs are directed to make payment with interest withi n 90 days from 

the date of th is order fa ll ing which the Petitioner is entitled for Late Payment Surcharge from 
the date or default till realization. 

/\ftcr the Pinal Judgement is passed by KERC, Bangaluru, the balance amount of Rs. I 2,792 (31,66,318 un its X 
4.04) for the year 2022-23, Rs.1 2,443 (30.79,90 I units X 4.04) fo r the year 202 1-22, Rs. I 2,138 (30.04.344 units 
X 4.04) for the year 2020-2 1, Rs. 12,238 (30.29.262 un its X 4.04) for the year 2019-20. Rs. 11.545 (2857681 units 
X -l .04) for FY 2018- 19 and Rs.2.6 71 ( 6.61.3 75 units X 4 .04) for FY 2017-18 wi 11 be recoverable by the company 
as per the order. Also, the liquidated damages pa id earlier of Rs.2,000 is also recoverable. The interest entitled on 
the differential tariff and liquidated damages recoverable will be accounted on receipt basis. 

· · al amount of Rs. 19,433 (Rs.1.23 X 1.57.98.88 I) to be paid to the Farmer as per MOU from July 2017 till 
23, has been recognized in the Financial Statements in the current financial year, since the company is 

l ' 1 to realize the amount from BESCOM owing to the KERC Order. This amount the 
~ 'alized from BESCOM. 

ii (:) 



33. Financial Ratios 
The Ratios for the years ended March 3 I ,2023 and March 3 1,2022 are as fo llows: 

Denominator 
As at March 3 1, Variance Pa rtic ulars Numerator 
2023 2022 ( in %) 

a) Current ratio1 
Current Asset Current Liability 2.83 8.27 (65.81) 

b) Debt-Equity ratio Tota l Liabilities (Debt) Shareholders Equity 0.72 0.59 22.24 
. . , 

c) Debt service coverage ratio- El31TDA Principal + Interest 0.04 0.40 (89.36) 

d) Return on equity ratio3 
Net Profit Shareholders Equitv -22.42% 0.79% (2,95 1.03) 

e) Inventory turnover ratio Net Sales Average Inventory 323.44 312.67 3.45 
If) Trade rece ivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales Average Trade Rece ivables 0.45 0.56 (1 8.82) 
g) Trade payables turnover ratio Net Credit Purchase Average Trade Payables NA 0.1 8 NA 
h) Net capita I turnover ratio Turnover Working Capital 0.54 0.46 17.45 
i) Net profit ratio 

4 
Net Profit Turnover -57.12% 2.59% (2,303.54) 

i) Return on capital emolovei EBIT Capital Employed -5.90% 6.32% ( 193.22) 
Income generated from Time Weighted Average 

NA NA NA k) Return on investment Investment Investment 

Note:-

EBITDA - Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization 
EBIT - Earni ngs before Interest and Taxes 
Working Capital - Current Assets less Current Liabi lities 
Capital Employed - Total Assets less Current Liabilities 
Shareholders Equity - Share capital plus Other Equity 

Expla nation:-

I. The adverse effect in Current Ratio is due to increase in current liabil ity due to Recognition Provision of Royalty. 
2. The adverse impact in Debt Service Coverage Ratio is due to reduction in EBITDA on recognising Royalty 
Prov ision during this Financial year. 
3. The adverse impact in Return on Equity Ratio is due to decrease in Net Profi t on recognition of Royalty Provision. 
4. The adverse im pact in Net Profit Ratio is due to Recognition o f Royalty Provis ion. 
5. The adverse effect in Return on Capital is due to loss on recognition of royalty provision for the year. 

34. Segme nt Reporting 
The Company is mainly engaged in the business of generation and selling of power in India. Based on the info rmation 
reported for the purpose of resource a llocation and assessment of performance, there are no reportable segments in 
accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard I 08-'Operating Segments', noti fied under the 
Companies (Indian Account ing Standards) Rules, 20 15. 

35. On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule Ill o f the 
Companies Act, 201 3 and the amendments are appl icable for financial periods commencing from April 1, 202 1. The 
Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its financial statements and compl ied with the same. 

In order to simpli fy numerical data and enhance the clarity of our presentations, we have rounded figures to the nearest 
thousands as per the requirement of Ind AS Schedule Ill Amendments. While this approach helps to make data easier 
to interpret, it can sometimes result in a total mismatch between ind ividual figures and their sum when rounded. 

36. Additional regulatory information 
a) Details of benami property held 
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 20 16) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) 
, ~ ~ ~ ade thereunder. · 

0 '{ PRtv_,; 0 & 'a' ~ C 

~ ) Bor l ng secured against current assets ~ O* 
~ The Con ~ • 1y has borrowing I im its sanctioned from banks and financial institutions on the basi~ A ~ muw;g ,,_ rrcnt 
~c) sets. -0~ uarterly returns or statements fi led by the Company with banks and financial institu ·~ f~11ri 14 l rnent 

~r . ~re oks of accounts. ~ ~~ 
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c) Wilful defaulter 
The Company has not been declared wilfu l defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority . 

cl) Relationship with struck off companies 
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 20 13 or Companies Act, 
1956. 

e) Compliance with number of layers of companies 
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act. 20 13 
read with Companies (Restriction of number of layers) Rules, 20 I 7. 

t) Utilisation of borrowed funds and s hare premium 
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including fo reign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall : 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behal f of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on beha lf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (U ltimate Beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

g) Undisclosed income 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 196 1, that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

h) Details o f crypto currency or virtual currency 
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtua l currency during the current or previous year. 

i) Valuation of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property 
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets 
or both during the current or previous year. 

j) Other regulatory information Registration of charges or satisfaction w ith Registrar o f Companies 
There are no charges or satisfaction wh ich are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the 
statutory period. 

37. The Company has a process whereby period ically all long-te,111 contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. 
At the year-end, the company has reviewed all such contracts and confirmed that no prov ision is required to be 
created under any law/ accounting standard towards any foreseeable losses. 

38. Previous year's figures are regrouped / rearranged, where necessary, to confirm to the current year's classification / 
disclosure. 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements : 1-3 8 
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